%

\
N CITY OF

YORK ‘

COUNCIL

Ve

Notice of a public meeting of
Area Planning Sub-Committee

To: Councillors Hollyer (Chair), Crawshaw (Vice-Chair),
Craghill, Daubeney, Fisher, Galvin, Melly, Orrell,
Waudby, Perrett and Webb

Date: Thursday, 11 November 2021

Time: 4.30 pm

Venue: West Offices, Station Rise, York, YO1 6GA
AGENDA

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare:
e any personal interests not included on the Register of
Interests
e any prejudicial interests or
e any disclosable pecuniary interests
which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.

2. Minutes (Pages 3 - 18)
To approve and sign the minutes of the last meeting of the Area
Planning Sub-Committee held on 13 October 2021.

3. Public Participation
At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may
speak on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the
committee. Please note that our registration deadlines have
changed to 2 working days before the meeting, in order to
facilitate the management of public participation at remote
meetings. The deadline for registering at this meeting is
5:00pm on Tuesday, 09 November 2021.

www.york.gov.uk



5.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill out an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the registration
form or the meeting, please contact the relevant Democracy Officer,
on the details at the foot of the agenda.

Webcasting of Remote Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this remote public
meeting will be webcast including any registered public speakers
who have given their permission. The remote public meeting can be
viewed live and on demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

During coronavirus, we've made some changes to how we're running
council meetings. See our coronavirus updates
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy ) for more information on
meetings and decisions.

Plans List
To determine the following planning application:

Castle Howard Ox, Townend Street, York, (Pages 19 -62)
YO31 7QA [21_00537_FULM]

Conversion of public house to 16no0. student studio apartments with
two storey extension to the side/east elevation, first and second
storey extension to the rear/north elevation, and single storey
rear/north extension following the demolition of the single storey
projections. [Guildhall Ward]

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer:

Jane Meller

Contact details:

e Telephone: (01904) 5209

Email: jane.meller@york.qgov.uk



mailto:jane.meller@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EPEAEMNESRHEEREIESS (cantonese)
g2 ©T AT e o (@O AN | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Palish)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
G e ) G T (Ura)
@ (01904) 551550




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Annex

Coronavirus protocols for attending Committee Meetings at West Offices

If you are attending a meeting in West Offices, you must observe the following protocols.

Good ventilation is a key control point, therefore, all windows must remain open within the meeting
room.

If you’re displaying possible coronavirus symptoms (or anyone in your household is displaying symptoms),
you should follow government guidance. You are advised not to attend your meeting at West Offices.

Testing

The Council encourages regular testing of all Officers and Members and also any members of the public in
attendance at a Committee Meeting. Any members of the public attending a meeting are advised to take a
test within 24 hours of attending a meeting, the result of the test should be negative, in order to attend.
Test kits can be obtained by clicking on either link: Find where to get rapid lateral flow tests - NHS (test-
and-trace.nhs.uk), or, Order coronavirus (COVID-19) rapid lateral flow tests - GOV.UK (www.goV.uk).
Alternatively, if you call 119 between the hours of 7am and 11pm, you can order a testing kit over the
telephone.

Guidelines for attending Meetings at West Offices

Please do not arrive more than 10 minutes before the meeting is due to start.

You may wish to wear a face covering to help protect those also attending.

You should wear a face covering when entering West Offices.

Visitors to enter West Offices by the customer entrance and Officers/Councillors to enter using the

staff entrance only.

Ensure your ID / visitors pass is clearly visible at all time.

¢ Regular handwashing is recommended.

e Use the touchless hand sanitiser units on entry and exit to the building and hand sanitiser within the
Meeting room.

e Bring your own drink if required.

e Only use the designated toilets next to the Meeting room.

Developing symptoms whilst in West Offices
If you develop coronavirus symptoms during a Meeting, you should:

e Make your way home immediately
e Avoid the use of public transport where possible
¢ Follow government guidance in relation to self-isolation.

You should also:

o Advise the Meeting organiser so they can arrange to assess and carry out additional cleaning
e Do not remain in the building any longer than necessary
o Do not visit any other areas of the building before you leave

If you receive a positive test result, or if you develop any symptoms before the meeting is due to take place,
you should not attend the meeting.

EJAV312.08.21

Page 1of1


https://maps.test-and-trace.nhs.uk/
https://maps.test-and-trace.nhs.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/order-coronavirus-rapid-lateral-flow-tests

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 3 Agenda Item 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Area Planning Sub-Committee
Date 13 October 2021

Present Councillors Hollyer (Chair), Crawshaw (Vice-

Chair), Craghill, Daubeney, Galvin, Melly,
Orrell, Waudby, Perrett and Douglas
(Substitute)

Apologies Councillors Fisher, Webb

21.

22.

23.

Declarations of Interest

Members were invited to declare, at this point in the meeting,
any personal interests not included on the Register of Interests,
any prejudicial interests or any disclosable pecuniary interests
that they might have in the business on the agenda.

Cllr Daubney declared that he had personal knowledge of the
applicant for item 4a and 4b, Barnitts, 28A Colliergate, York. He
therefore withdrew from the meeting for the duration of both
items.

CllIr Perrett declared that Clir Webb, who was to speak in
objection to Mast adjacent to Gas Holder off Hawthorn Grove,
York, was her partner, but indicated that they had not discussed
the issue together and that the interest was not prejudicial or
pecuniary.

Minutes

Resolved: That the minutes of the Area Planning Sub-
Committee meeting held on 12 August 2021 be
approved and then signed by the Chair as a correct
record.

Public Participation
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak

under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general
issues within the remit of the Sub-Committee.



24.

25.

Page 4

Plans List

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Assistant
Director, Planning and Public Protection, relating to the following
planning applications, outlining the proposals and relevant
policy considerations and setting out the views of consultees
and officers.

Barnitts, 28A Colliergate York [19/02753/FULM]
[Councillor Daubeney withdrew from the meeting at 16:35]

Members considered a Full Planning Permission application to
detach the buildings from the remainder of the Barnitts’ store
and for conversion into 12 dwellings, and a ground floor retail
unit within 28a. A Listed Building Consent application was also
considered which was for the works associated with
conversion of the Drill Hall and 28a into 12 dwellings and a
separate retail unit, and separating these premises from the
remainder of the Barnitts retail space on Colliergate.

The Development Manager gave a presentation on the
application. Members asked officers a number of questions to
which they answered that:

e There are 24 covered and secure cycle spaces
reserved in the plan.

¢ |nterms of Listed Building Consent, the special interest
in the Drill Hall was, in part, the previous use of the
building.

e The application was for C3 dwellings, short term,
holiday lettings do not normally fit within this category.

e Condition 11 could be amended to include the number
of cycle spaces, that being 24.

e The four townhouses within the fabric of the listed
buildings were constrained by their listed status this is
why the BREEAM only applies to the eight townhouses
within the Drill Hall.

e The construction costs were wide ranging and
substantial and included the value of the buildings
currently, the costs of development and the value of
what the new buildings were worth.

¢ |t was confirmed that a proper assessment of the
viability of the retail unit has been carried out.



Page 5

Public Speakers

Paul Thompson spoke as the applicant in support of the
application. He explained that he was the MD of Barnitts, he
was the third generation of his family to run the store which has
been trading in York for 125 years. He further explained that
since the application was deferred, they have waited 11 months
for the independent viability report, during this time the retail
environment has undergone significant changes. As a result of
modernising the operation, the amount of retail and storage
space they currently have is no longer needed. A positive
outcome would allow the business to reinvest in York city centre
and enable the business to expand the click and collect service
in James’ Street. 98% of deliveries would go to James Street,
alleviating city centre traffic congestion.

In response to questions from committee members, Paul
Thompson and his colleagues explained the following:

e There was no parking on the site currently.

e The architects had considered several improvements to
achieve the BREEAM rating including, electric heating
on green tariffs, new windows, insulation to properties,
air tightness and improvements to the thermal
performance of the building. Internal wall insulation has
also been considered for the Drill Hall, balanced
against the requirements of an old building.

e Any tenancy agreements will be not less than six
months.

e The plans for the Drill Hall open up the space and have
created more of a feel and sense of space than
currently.

Phil Pinder spoke in support of the application on behalf of York
Retail Forum. He explained that Barnitts was an essential
retailer in the city, providing for the needs of local residents. He
went on to explain that the release of funds provided by the
development would enable them to invest in the future. He
added that downsizing would also have the added advantage of
reducing the business rates payable. The introduction of more
housing stock further creates a local customer base for those
existing businesses in the city centre. He confirmed that the
stand alone retail unit was the ideal size for an independent
retailer.



Page 6

In response to further questions from members, planning
officers stated that they had considered the potential alternative
uses for the Drill Hall and believed that other plans would not be
forthcoming due to economic and location constraints. The
future viability of the business was not considered as part of the
planning balance.

After debate, it was moved by Clir Orrell and seconded by Clir
Waudby to approve the application for both 4a and 4b. Further
debate ensued. On being put to the vote, the motion was carried
and it was:

Resolved: That the application be approved, subject to the
completion of a Section 106 Agreement and the
conditions in the report and subject to the
amendment to condition 11. Condition 11 be
amended to refer to the approved number of cycle
parking spaces, that being 24.

Reasons:

I.  The scheme involves the re-use of buildings surplus
to the requirements of the current owner. The
restoration and proposed alternative uses accord
with the social and economic objectives of the NPPF
regarding housing supply, the economy, the vitality
of town centres and making effective use of land. In
respect of decision-making the NPPF requires
planning to support (and give substantial weight in
decision-making) the development of under-used
buildings, especially when this would help meet
identified needs for housing. The scheme retains
commercial use at the ground floor facing King's
Square, within 28a, and appropriately makes more
effective use of other underused parts of the site; the
upper floors of 28a, the buildings behind and the
Drill Hall.

ii. Itis considered that residential use is likely the only
viable option to secure reuse and continued
occupation of the relevant building(s). There is
demonstrable local housing need. To facilitate re-
use of the listed buildings, including ones which are
in poor condition, and the associated social and
economic benefits of the scheme would equate a
public benefit that justifies the harm to the
significance of the buildings. In making the planning



26.

Page 7

balance, officer’'s recommendation is that the
benefits outweigh the identified harm, despite non-
compliance with local affordable housing policy. Any
residential re-use of the Drill Hall would lead to a
degree of harm to the original layout. A scheme less
harmful to that proposed would not be viable, given
the amount of restoration work involved, and the
amount and quality of accommodation provided. The
loss of the staircase in 28a is necessary to enable
the desired mix of uses in a functional and efficient
way.

lii.  Other technical issues — amenity, sustainable design
and transport can be addressed by conditions.

iv. Independent valuation has concluded that the
scheme cannot deliver an affordable housing
contribution. However it acknowledges the
uncertainty in this case, given the extent of
construction work, the unique nature and location of
the housing proposed and local housing supply and
prices. The applicants have accepted a viability re-
appraisal, if there is a delay in implementation of the
scheme. This would ensure the value of the
development remained relevant. It would be secured
by the S106 legal agreement, triggered if
development does not commence within 2 years of
the date of approval.

[The meeting adjourned from 17:39 to 17:42]
[Cllr Daubney re-joined the meeting at 17:42]

Barnitts, 28A Colliergate, York [19/02754/LBC]

The planning application for Listed Building Consent in respect
to internal and external alterations of the Drill Hall was debated
alongside item 4a as minuted above.

Resolved: That the application be approved subject to referral
to the Secretary of State.

Reasons:

I.  The proposed changes to facilitate residential re-use
on the upper floor of 28a and within the Drill Hall
cause less than substantial harm to the historic
importance of the buildings. Due principally to sub-



27.

Page 8

division within the Drill Hall, to facilitate a new viable
use, and the loss of a staircase in 28a Colliergate.

ii. Asrequired by the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990) and the NPPF, the
Local Planning Authority must give considerable
iImportance and weight to the desirability of avoiding
harm.

lii. The proposals for the Drill Hall have been amended
significantly, so the buildings character is better
revealed within the interior and the buildings’ roof
form now better reflects the building’s traditional
form. The public benefits of enabling a new long-
term use for the buildings, retaining their character
and improving their environmental performance
outweigh the identified harm.

iv. As Historic England have formally objected to the
scheme, if Members resolve to approve the
application it must be referred to the Secretary of
State. This is to determine whether they wish to
call-in the application for consideration under the
Arrangements for handling Heritage Applications
Direction 2015.

Deighton Lodge Limited, Rush Farm (Game Farm), York
Road, Deighton, York [21 00902 FUL]

Members considered an application to vary a condition of
planning permission to increase the number of weddings held in
2022 and 2023 from 15 to 19 per year at Deighton Lodge
Limited, Rush Farm (Game Farm), York Road, Deighton, York.

The Development Manager gave a presentation on the
application and officers were asked if the extension could be
conditioned to one year. Officers explained that the lead in time
of approximately 18 months for weddings made this difficult. An
update was given concerning noise insulation measures.

Public Speakers

Michael Morris spoke in opposition to the application as a
neighbour of the property. He explained that residents are still
being affected by noise from the property. He went on to
question the financial reasons behind the application citing that
that owners made a substantial profit from the business. He
concluded that should events take place several nights a week it




Page 9

would be distressing for residents and that he would not be in
objection if previous planning regulations had been met.

Sharon Coutts spoke in support of the application as the deputy
manager of the business. She explained that the business had
been closed for the majority of 2020 due to Covid related
reasons. The closure had impacted on local suppliers as well
as the business and the increase in the number of weddings
would assist in mitigating their losses. She addressed concerns
around noise, explaining that they had worked with a noise
analytical company and had produced a noise management
plan. She then outlined the plan and confirmed that they had
had no complaints during weddings for the last three years.

In response to questions from members it was confirmed that
weddings take place most usually on a Saturday and if the
application was approved there would be four more weddings
on Saturdays throughout the year.

The Deputy Manager was responsible for noise management
and that incidents relating to noise were formally recorded.
Doors to the barn were kept closed all evening, live music ends
at 23:00 and recorded music finishes at 24:00. All guests were
off the site by 24:30. It was confirmed that smoking area is at
the opposite side of the garden to the neighbours.

After debate, it was moved by ClIr Melly and seconded by ClIr
Daubeney to approve the application.

Resolved: That approval be given to the application subject to
the conditions listed in the report and additional
condition and informative as below:

Additional Condition

The noise insulation measures and lighting design
approved by Approval of Details AOD/16/00288
dated 30.07.2019 shall be permanently retained.

Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of
adjoining residential occupiers and limit
the impact on wildlife.

Additional Informative

The sub-committee recorded that they approved the
application as a reaction to the loss of business
caused by the pandemic. It should not be relied on




28.

Reasons:
I

Page 10

as a precedent for any future applications to
increase the number of events at the venue.

The proposal to increase the number of events at
the site to 25 in 2017 was refused at Area Planning
Sub-Committee and the decision upheld at appeal.
The current application is to increase the number of
events that can be held at the venue from 15 to 19
for two years only. The justification for this solely
relates to the financial impact of restrictions related
to the pandemic and the desire to try and
accommodate some of the weddings that have been
cancelled since 2020. The NPPF whilst
emphasising the need to ensure that people have
good living environments also requires decisions to
create conditions in which businesses can invest
and adapt (Paragraph 81) and places where social,
cultural and recreational facilities are provided to
meet community needs (paragraph (93).

The increase in the number of events from 15 to 19
will increase the number of nights on which noise
could impact on neighbours. It is considered,
however, that this impact should be balanced
against the economic and social benefits that will
result from allowing the business to temporarily vary
the planning condition. It is noted that the addition
of 8 wedding ceremonies over 2 years does not
exceed the number of events that have been
cancelled to comply with covid-19 regulations.

[The meeting adjourned from 18:09 to 18:18]

Mast Adjacent To Gas Holder Off Hawthorn Grove, York

[ 21/01692/FUL]

Members considered an application to replace the existing mast

Mews.

and associated equipment on site, with a new, taller and
relocated mast. The proposed mast would be some 60m
northeast of the existing mast site, closer to housing at Heworth



Page 11

The Development Manager outlined the application and this was
followed by an update concerning an additional representation
in the form of an objection that had been made.

Following the presentation, members asked officers a number of
questions to which they answered that:

e The height of the mast will be 32m.

e The compound for the mast was approximately 10m
from the play area.

e The trees along the Sustrans route were deciduous,
there was no plan to remove them.

Public Speakers

David Holt spoke in opposition to the application. His primary
concern was the lack of screening for the proposed mast. He
guestioned why alternative locations had not been considered
and raised concerns regarding the safety of the compound in
relation to the nearby children’s playground.

Responding to questions from members, he confirmed that the
rear of his property would face the mast.

Tim Ross spoke in support of the application as the agent for
the applicant. He explained that the relocation of the mast was
necessary in order to decontaminate the site and build 607
homes as part of the city plan. This would also reduce pressure
on green field sites in the city. He confirmed that the developers
agreed to the proposed planning conditions included in the
officer’s report. There are also planned planting schemes in
place.

Mr Ross and Mike Phillips, the project manager, also clarified a
number of points in response to members’ questions.

e The mast has to be removed to decontaminate the site
and the location of the new mast has been identified to
enhance public views and meet the needs of the
communications companies to deliver 5G.

e The developers have met with Sustrans and have
discussed planting options. Planting close to the mast
must not be more than 15m in height.

Cllr Robert Webb spoke in objection to the application as Ward
Councillor on behalf of local residents. He explained that at the
time the outline planning consent was granted, the concerns



Page 12

regarding the mast and its’ location were already in existence. It
had been anticipated that the new mast would be slimmer and
less obtrusive. He also highlighted the lack of suitable
screening for residents. He requested a deferment to consider
alternative options.

Following further questions from members, the reasons for the
height and position of the mast was clarified.

After debate it was moved by Clir Galvin and seconded by Clir
Orrell that the application be approved subject to the conditions
in the report. On being put to the vote, the motion was carried
and it was:

Resolved: That approval be given to the application subject to
the conditions listed in the report.

Reasons:

I.  The NPPF and Publication Draft Local Plan policy
C1 state that telecommunications should be
supported where possible. The NPPF states such
infrastructure is essential for economic growth, and
DLP policy C1 supports mast sharing and continued
use of existing sites. The taller mast enables 5G to
be accommodated. Further, it weighs in favour of
the scheme that the relocation is to facilitate
redevelopment of the site for new housing and the
setting of the Minster, the views from the
conservation area in East Parade would be
enhanced. No harm to Heritage Assets has been
identified.

ii.  The visual impact on the local area is comparable to
the existing mast, which is evident above existing
tree cover. The new mast would be some 2.6 m
taller and of comparable lattice type design. The
mast would be closer to housing at Heworth Mews
and 19 Hawthorn Grove than the existing mast, but
the relocation moves it further from other housing
along Hawthorn Grove.

lii. The mast would have an adverse impact on the
amenity of surrounding residents in terms of outlook.
This is, and would be, the case with the existing and
alternative locations on-site. The equipment on the
mast needs to be located at certain height. It would
be no less obtrusive on the townscape or in the



29.

Page 13

outlook from surrounding houses if it were located
on the proposed buildings on-site; it would need to
be some 15m taller than the tallest buildings. In any
event the developers of the site and the mast
operators have discounted this option, for example
due to issues around maintenance access and as
there would be compromise on the design and
function of the proposed dwellings.

iv.  The visual impact of the proposed mast is mitigated
by the separation distance from housing and
prominence of tree cover. Overall, the mast would
not be significantly more intrusive than the current
structure, to the extent that would justify a refusal on
amenity grounds.

[The meeting adjourned from 19:24 to 19:34]

York Brewery Warehouse, 9 The Crescent, York, YO24 1AW
[20/01411/FULM]

Members considered an application which sought the partial
demolition of the existing buildings on site and redevelopment
with 2960m2 office space. The new building has 5 floors
including basement and a small mezzanine area in the roof
space.

The Development Manager gave a presentation on the
application. This was followed by an update following additional
consultation with the Ecology Officer where it was noted that
demolition should not take place during bird nesting season.
Accommodation should be made for bird and bat boxes.
Members asked officers a number of questions to which they
answered that:

e The scheme has been revised to an angled roof
elevation to reduce the impact of the roof line on
residents.

e Plans for drainage have been conditioned within the
report.

e The noise impact assessment plan covers both noise
from the music venue and the planned offices. This was
in the list of approved drawings.

e For a Deed of Easement, members were advised to
delegate approval to officers, subject to having sight of
an agreed document.



Page 14

o Officers would refer to Highways and confirm that the
preference of the sub-committee was for a Pay and
Display bay to be used for disabled parking rather than
a RESPARK bay

e Conditions 10-14 refer to the conservation response.

Public Speakers

Harkirit Boparai spoke in opposition to the application as both
Manager of the music venue next door to the development and
as a local resident. He explained that he considered that the
height of the wall would affect his residence and he also
questioned who would be responsible for maintaining the green
wall. Sound checks take place from 4pm and there was
concern regarding the impact of the building site on the
operation of the music venue. Aesthetically, he felt that this
proposal was out of character for the rest of the street.

In response to questions from members there were
approximately 6 people living above the building.

Ed Leyland spoke via Zoom in opposition to the application, as
the owner of the music venue and as a resident. He stated that
the plans were out of scale to the rest of the buildings in the
immediate vicinity. He also raised concerns that the planned
building would be detrimental to the living conditions of nearby
residents.

Neil Brown spoke in support of the application as the architect
for the applicant. He was supported by Philip Holmes, the
planning consultant. He explained that the design was
developed in consultation with local residents and businesses
and made use of an existing brown field site. The revised
design had addressed previous concerns of residents, with the
decreasing roof line and noise mitigation plans.

They confirmed the following in response to members’
guestions:
e The green wall would be maintained by the applicant.
Residents of no. 8 could decide on how it would look.
e The applicant would be willing to sign a deed of
easement if that was deemed appropriate.

In response to further questions from members, officers noted
that



Page 15

e A separate condition could be made for maintenance of
the green wall.

e Changes to the characteristics of an area should be
part of the consideration.

¢ A sentence could be included in the CEMP to cover the
Impact construction work on the operation of the music
venue.

After debate, ClIr Galvin moved to approve the application. This
was seconded by ClIr Douglas. The motion was carried and it
was therefore:

Resolved: That the application was approved subject to section
106 — varied conditions in the report and the
following amended and updated conditions.

I.  Require submission of evidence of signed deed
of easement

Amended and updated conditions:
I.  C2-remove ref to Noise Impact Assessment
ii. C5—amend note to refer specifically to the
Impact on the adjacent music venue
lii. C15 - remove reference to Green Wall, remove
wording “within a period of 5 years”

New conditions:
I.  Implementation, maintenance and retention of
green wall
ii. Implementation of recommendations in the Noise
Impact Assessment

Reasons:

I.  The presumption in favour of sustainable
development contained within paragraphl11 of the
NPPF requires that, where there are no relevant
development plan policies, or the policies are out of
date, permission should be granted unless the
application of policies in the Framework that protect
areas or assets of particular importance provides a
clear reason for refusing the development proposed.
The policies referred to include those related to
designated heritage assets which would include the
Central Historic Core Conservation Area. It has been
identified that the proposal will result in less than



Page 16

substantial harm to the Conservation Area through
the loss of the existing building and as such the
presumption in favour of sustainable development
does not apply.

li. The proposal has been considered against the
policies in Section 16 of the NPPF giving great
weight to the asset’s conservation. Weighed against
the small level of less than substantial harm
identified to the CHCCA are public benefits relating
to the provision of high quality office space providing
jobs within a sustainable location. The bringing back
in to use of a currently vacant brownfield site should,
in accordance with Section 11 of the NPPF, be given
weight as well as the sustainability benefits of a
newly constructed building meeting current policy
requirements in terms of carbon emissions and
sustainable design.

lii. The existing building is considered a non-designated
heritage asset. The NPPF requires that when
considering application which affect non-designated
heritage assets, a balanced judgement is required
having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and
the significant of the heritage asset. Here, it is
accepted that the quality of the replacement
building, combined with the other benefits identified,
are sufficient to outweigh the loss of the non-
designated heritage asset.

iv. Other issues related to amenity, cycle parking and
accessibility and drainage have been assessed and
can be covered via condition. Subject to comments
from the Council’s Ecologist, the proposal is
recommended for approval subject to conditions and
S106 contributions for changes to TROs and travel
plan monitoring.

[Cllr Galvin left the meeting at 20:49]

Cllr Crawshaw proposed deferral of the final item, 4e, this was
seconded by ClIr Melly.

The committee voted in favour of deferring item 4e.



Page 17

30. Castle Howard Ox, Townend Street, York, YO31 7QA
[21 00537 _FULM]

Resolved: That the application was deferred.
Reason:

I.  To allow sufficient consideration of the application
at a future meeting.

ClIr A Hollyer, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 8.52 pm].



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19 Agenda Item 4a
COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 11 November 2021  Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 21/00537/FULM

Application at: Castle Howard Ox Townend Street York YO31 7QA

For: Conversion of public house to 16no. student studio apartments

with two storey extension to the side/east elevation, first and
second storey extension to the rear/north elevation, and single
storey rear/north extension following the demolition of the single
storey projections

By: Alastair Cliffe
Application Type: Major Full Application
Target Date: 21 October 2021

Recommendation: Approve subject to s106 Agreement
1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 Planning permission is sought for the conversion of the public house to 16 no.
studio apartments for student accommodation. In addition there would be a two
storey extension to the side/east elevation and rear/north elevation and a single
storey extension to the north following the demolition of the existing extensions. A
communal room is proposed on the ground floor, there would be external cycle and
bin store and outside communal space.

1.2 The site is within the Area of Archaeological Importance. The site is within Flood
Zone 1. To the north, east and south of the site is residential development. To the
west is former petrol station/garage used as a tool hire shop.

1.3 Officers understand that the public house has been closed since 2017.

1.4 This item was deferred at the Sub-committee meeting of 13 October 2021 due to
the length of the agenda.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 The City of York Draft Local Plan Incorporating the Fourth Set of Changes was
approved for Development Management purposes in April 2005:

GP1 Design

GP4a Sustainability

GP6 Contaminated Land

GP15a Development and Flood Risk

NE7 Habitat Protection and Creation

HE2 Development in Historic Locations

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 1 of 27



Page 20

HE10 Archaeology

T4 Cycle Parking Standards

T13a Travel plans and Contributions

ED10 Student Housing

C3 Change of Use of Community Facilities

MW7 Temporary Storage for Recyclable Material

2.2 The Publication Draft York Local Plan (2018)

H7 Student Housing

HW1 Protecting Existing facilities

D1 Placemaking

D4 Conservation Areas

D6 Archaeology

D7 The Significance of Non-designated Heritage Assets

D11 Extensions and Alterations to Existing Buildings

GI2 Biodiversity and Access to Nature

CC1 Renewable and Low carbon Energy generation and Storage
CC2 Sustainable design and Construction of New Development
ENV1 Air Quality

ENV2 Managing Environmental Quality

ENV3 Land Contamination

ENV5 Sustainable Drainage

WM1 Sustainable Waste Management

T1 Sustainable Access

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS

HIGHWAY NETWORK MANAGEMENT

3.1 No objections. Request conditions: Removal of redundant crossings; Cycle
parking details to be agreed; Car and cycle parking laid out; No gate, etc; Travel
Plan. Condition/informative ensure development remains "car-free" in perpetuity.

3.2 There have been several recent small scale developments within the resident’s
parking zone (R25) which have been removed from the zone. HNM consider that
Residents Parking Zone R25 is over-subscribed and this development should be
removed from it, with the attendant costs being sought through the s106 agreement.

DESIGN, CONSERVATION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
(CONSERVATION OFFICER)

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 2 of 27



Page 21

3.3 The amended scheme addresses concerns from a conservation and design
perspective. If recommended for approval request following conditions: external
materials for approval; a 1x1m brick panel to show brick, coursing, bond, mortar and
pointing; scale constructional drawings for all external joinery including any
alterations required to the retained historic sash window to ground floor west
elevation (preferably to be retained as is with secondary glazing installed for
acoustic and thermal enhancement); details of rooflights.

DESIGN, CONSERVATION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (ECOLOGY
OFFICER)

3. 4 No evidence of roosting bats or nesting birds was identified during the ecology
survey, ecological enhancements have been recommended within associated report
with the aim of providing biodiversity net gain post construction. The increased
structural integrity of modern developments reduces the potential for birds and bats
to utilise modern buildings for nesting and roosting therefore any new developments
should integrate a variety of bird and/or bat boxes. If this application is approved
request condition for a biodiversity enhancement plan

DESIGN, CONSERVATION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
(ARCHAEOLOGY)

3.5 The Castle Howard Ox lies within the Central Area of Archaeological
Importance. The building dates to the mid-19™ century, with later additions. It is a
non-designated heritage asset. A heritage statement has been submitted with the
application as suggested at pre-application stage. The statement confirms that the
main body of the building and the 1930s extensions are of some significance while
the mid-late 20" century alterations are not. The statement does not describe the
interior of the building. It is unknown whether the building contains any internal
features worthy of recording.

3.6 The proposed works at the Castle Howard Ox includes extending the existing
building. Despite the existing extensions this has the potential to reveal
archaeological features and/or deposits. An archaeological watching brief should
take place during groundworks to record the nature of any deposits which may
survive on the site. The employed archaeologist should also include a brief
photographic record of the exterior and any features of interest within the interior of
the public house prior to conversion. Request condition for a programme of post
determination archaeological mitigation

LEAD LOCAL FLOOD AUTHORITY

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 3 of 27



Page 22

3.7 No increase of impermeable areas and there is no room/space to provide
betterment the Flood Risk Management Team has no objections and therefore if
planning permission is to be granted request details of the proposed means of foul
and surface water disposal.

PUBLIC PROTECTION

3.8 The applicant has submitted a Lithos Preliminary Ground Investigation ref
3655/1 dated December 2019. In addition to this investigation, public protection
team has records of previous industrial uses adjacent to the site that could have
caused land contamination within this area e.g. garage/motor engineers etc request
following condition: submission of investigation and risk assessment; submission of
a remediation scheme; submission of verification report; reporting of unexpected
contamination; submission of Construction Environmental Management Plan.

3.9 The development is close to commercial activities therefore the developer
should demonstrate that internal and external noise levels within the dwellings can
be achieved. Request condition for detailed scheme of noise insulation measures.

3.10 The development for student accommodation will be close to existing
residential dwellings. Therefore in order to ensure that the occupants of the existing
dwellings are not adversely affected by noise from the student accommodation
request a condition requiring the applicant to submit a noise management plan for
the operation of the development.

PUBLIC REALM

3.10 Seeking £2,416 which would be used to improve the amenity open space
within the nearby Clarence Gardens, specifically towards the transformation of the
disused bowling green into a more robust area of amenity grassland.

COMMUNITY SPORTS DEVELOPMENT MANAGER

3.11 Request contribution towards sports provision of £3,408. This would be used to
support existing local voluntary / community sports facilities in the local area to cater
for the increase in residents.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING
3.12 If the development is considered acceptable request that a condition is added

that it could only be used for student accommodation and no other type of
accommodation, otherwise an affordable housing obligation would be required.

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 4 of 27



Page 23

WASTE SERVICES

3.13 The site is not acceptable for CYC refuse collections as there is not a suitable
collection point for the refuse collection vehicle. The site does not have vehicle
access or a turning point, is very close to a busy junction and the street immediately
next to the proposed development has double yellow road markings.

EXTERNAL CONSULTATIONS

GUILDHALL PLANNING PANEL

3.14 Object, overdevelopment of the site. There is a lack of outside storage for bins
and bikes and a shortage of outdoor communal space for the number of units
proposed.

3.15 Support the reuse of the pub.
YORKSHIRE WATER

3.16 No comments received.

FIRE AND RESCUE PREVENTION OFFICER

3.17 No objections, will make further comment in relation to the suitability of
proposed fire safety measures at the time when the building control body submit a
statutory Building Regulations consultation to the Fire Authority.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS
NORTH YORKSHIRE POLICE

4.1 An analysis of police recorded incidents in the area of the proposed
development highlights the presence of crime and antisocial behaviour which could
impact upon the security of the scheme. The analysis covers a period from the 1
March 2020 to the 28 February 2021. In summary, there were 321 crimes and 314
antisocial behaviour incidents recorded during this twelve month period. Noted that
the Covid 19 pandemic has resulted in a lower burglary count due to people staying
and working at home. Higher levels of antisocial behaviour are due to breaches of
Covid 19 guidance being recorded as antisocial behaviour. Any new development
has the potential to increase these levels if the designing out of crime is not
considered and implemented.

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 5 of 27



Page 24

4.2 Consideration should be given to fitting the communal entrance door with an
electronic door release mechanism connected to a videophone in each apartment.
The door should also have a self-closing mechanism with a lock which engages
automatically. External windows on the ground floor should be fitted with opening
restrictors to prevent sneak-in burglaries when a window is left open.

4.3 The crime analysis showed that the theft of cycles is prevalent in the area.
Consequently, it is recommended that the cycle store should be: Opento
surveillance by having walls constructed from materials such as welded mesh,
grilles or bars, polycarbonate or other secure glazing such as glass composites; Lit
after dark using vandal resistant, dedicated energy efficient light fittings and energy
efficient lamps; Access controlled with an electronic fob key that only gives access
to the store by those that require it; The design of the stands within the store should
enable the cycle to be secured at two separate parts of the cycle, for example a
‘Sheffield Bar’

CONSERVATION AREAS ADVISORY PANEL (comments or original scheme)

4.4 Whilst the building is not in a conservation area nor a listed building it is within
an historic streetscape and a locally significant / none designated heritage asset.

4.5 The Panel consider the information supporting the application was of poor
quality, e.g. the ‘as existing’ plans contained no room titles. However there is no
basic objection to the proposal and the size of the bedrooms was commented upon
favourable. The appearance of the proposed building appears to be bland. The
heritage of this former public house could be acknowledged by the replacement of
the existing upvc windows with timber set correctly within reveals. Noted that there
appears to be no level access to the property.

NEIGHBOUR NOTIFICATION AND PUBLICITY

4.6 Five representations of objection:

- Student accommodation not required

- The area requires something that would bring the community together, the
Groves had 4 pubs now reduced to 1

- Lack of parking, each flat should have a parking space otherwise will result in
further parking within the Groves, there are existing parking issues in the area.

- No space for loading and unloading

- The accommodation should be able to accommodate people with disabilities

- Question whether studio accommodation is required

- Overdevelopment

- request that the work requires by the application is undertaken by people/firms
based within York

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 6 of 27



Page 25

- Local community has not been consulted

- would like the building to be used as a community centre

- Insufficient outside space for the future occupants

- Lack of council tax so adding to burden of the council, question if the
commercial rates could be paid

- Would result in nose disturbance

- Concerned there maybe water management issues

4.7 One letter of objection (to the revised scheme)

- The rooms are far too small, resulting in mental health issues. The shared
space is not large enough to accommodate all the residents

- Lack of outdoor amenity space, poor living conditions

- No parking has been provided

- The accommodation should be able to accommodate people with disabilities

- The bin storage is located furthest from the road, should be located close to
the road

5.0 APPRAISAL

5.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
determinations be made in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

PUBLICATION DRAFT YORK LOCAL PLAN (2018)

5.2 The Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 2018 ('2018 Draft Plan') was
submitted for examination on 25 May 2018. Phase 1 of the hearings into the
examination of the Local Plan took place in December 2019. In accordance with
paragraph 48 of the NPPF as revised in February 2019, the relevant 2018 Draft Plan
policies can be afforded weight according to:

- The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and
- The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (NB: Under transitional
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be
assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL LOCAL PLAN (2005)

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 7 of 27



Page 26

5.3 The Development Control Local Plan Incorporating the Fourth Set of Changes
was approved for development management purposes in April 2005 (DCLP). Whilst
the DCLP does not form part of the statutory development plan, its policies are
considered to be capable of being material considerations in the determination of
planning applications. Where policies relevant to the application are consistent with
those in the NPPF, the weight that can be afforded to them is very limited.

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (NPPF)

5.4 The revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and its planning
policies are a material consideration in the determination of planning applications.
The NPPF sets out the presumption in favour of sustainable development in
paragraph 11.

LOSS OF COMMUNITY FACILITY

5.5 Paragraph 93 of the NPPF sets out, among other things, that planning decisions
should guard against the unnecessary loss of valued facilities (including pubs),
particularly where this would reduce the community’s ability to meet its day to day
needs. This stance is echoed by policy HW1 (Protecting Existing Facilities) of the
emerging local plan. It states that development proposals that involve the loss of a
community facility will not be supported unless: equivalent or greater facilities are
provided on or off site; the facilities no longer serve a community function; or are no
longer financially viable. Policy D3 (Cultural Provision) states, among other things,
that development proposals will be supported where they do not cause the loss of
cultural facilities.

5.6 No financial information has been submitted about the profitability of the pub.
The narrative to Policy HW1 states that a loss of community facilities will only be
permitted when they have been marketed for a minimum of a year without success,
thereby demonstrating that they are unviable. The site had previously been acquired
by Star Pubs & Bars in August 2017, the public house was closed on completion of
the sale. The supporting information sets out that the public house was unviable and
they decided to sell the site in November 2018. The supporting information sets out
that the site was marketing online and a sale board was erected, pub companies,
owner occupiers, developers and local builders were targeted. During this time the
owners did not open/operate the venue. The supporting information sets out that the
public house was closed for a two reasons: high turnover of tenants; and struggles
to compete with the neighbouring Punch Bowl public house. The supporting
information sets out that the impact of Covid 19 would further exacerbate the
viability issues. The public house was advertised for £250,000 freehold. During the
marketing over 80 enquires were received. Best and final bids were invited (April
2019) and a total of 12 bids were received. None of these bids were to run the site

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 8 of 27



Page 27

as a public house or restaurant. All were received from developers or investors. The
sale was completed in May 2019. Since that time the public house has been closed.
The marketing period lasted a total of 7 months. Requiring the applicant to advertise
the pub differently or for a longer period is unlikely to give the council a better insight
into the viability of the Castle Howard Ox. Furthermore, bearing in mind the close
proximity of other public houses, offering a similar, but a wider range of services
than the application site can or could provide, officers do not consider that the loss
of the pub would result in undue harm to the local community.

IMPACT ON THE LOCAL ECONOMY

5.7 The NPPF states that local planning authorities should work proactively with
applicants to secure developments that will improve the economic, social and
environmental conditions of the area. Significant weight should be placed on the
need to support economic growth and productivity, taking into account local
business needs and wider opportunities for development (paragraph 81).

5.8 No information has been submitted regarding the turnover when the public
house was open. However as set out above there were struggles to compete with
neighbouring public houses together with high turnover of tenants. The site is tightly
constrained by the adjacent properties, highway frontages. The opportunities for
expansion or diversification are very limited. The impact on the local economy of the
loss of the pub is therefore likely to be small.

STUDENT ACCOMMODATION

5.9 Policy ED10 of the DCLP (2005) and Policy H7 (Student Housing) of the draft
Local Plan 2018 sets out that proposal for new student accommodation should
demonstrate: there is a proven need for student housing; and. it is in an appropriate
location for education institutions and accessible by sustainable transport modes;
and the development would not be detrimental to the amenity of nearby residents
and the design and access arrangements would have a minimal impact on the local
area. Policy is in general supportive of Purpose Built Student Accommodation
(PBSA) as a means of freeing up housing suitable for wider general housing needs.
Policy H7 requires the University of York and York St John University to address the
need for any additional student housing which arises as a result of their future
expansion, taking into account the capacity of independent providers; this is an
acknowledgement that privately built PBSA is an important part of the student
housing market.

5.10 The Council’s Strategic Housing Market Assessment 2016 acknowledges that
the student rental market remains strong and that demand for purpose built student

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 9 of 27



Page 28

accommodation is high, particularly from international students. The Applicant has
submitted a report on the need for student accommodation.

5.11 The SHMA also analyses the needs of specific groups within the population,
such as older people and students. The student population in York (22,269 at the
time of the 2011 Census of which 19,002 were full time students) grew significantly
by around 7,400 between 2001 and 2011, and is projected to continue to grow,
albeit at a slower rate. Higher Education Student Statistics (HESA) data referenced
in the SHMA shows 23,095 student in the City by 2014, with most significant growth
in numbers of full-time students. The SHMA acknowledges that the student rental
market remains strong and that demand for purpose built student accommodation is
high, particularly from international students. Latest HESA data (2018/19) shows
26,090 full and part-time students enrolled at York St John University and the
University of York.

5.12 The applicants provide a summary of approved PBSA since 2015 and their
figures suggest that PBSA can accommodate about 49% of students in full-time
higher education. The summary omits St Joseph’s Convent, Lawrence Street (+526
units, completed 2016/17) which would increase the numbers in PBSA to some
extent. Other schemes which are either under consideration by the LPA or approved
subject to legal agreements could, subject to permission being granted add about
500 more bed spaces. Officers are not aware of concerns around Purpose Built
Student Housing vacancies, and would suggest that applicants operating in a
competitive market are well placed to determine capacity in that market.

IMPACT ON HERITAGE ASSETS

5.13 The site is within Area of Archaeological Importance, and whilst just outside of
the Central Historic Conservation Area (Character area 1: Bootham Park Hospital) it
is considered to fall within the setting of the conservation Area. The site is
considered to fall within the setting of Grade Il listed former Groves Chapel, Union
Terrace. The building is also considered to be undesignated heritage asset.

5.14 In accordance with section 72 of the Planning (Listed Building and
Conservation Area) Act 1990 (“the 1990 Act”), the Local Planning Authority must
pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or
appearance of the Conservation Area in exercising its planning duties. Section 66 of
the 1990 Act requires the Local Planning Authority to have regard to preserving the
setting of Listed Buildings or any features of special architectural or historic interest
it possesses. Where there is found to be harm to the character or appearance of the
Conservation Area, or the setting of a listed building, the statutory duty means that
the avoidance of such harm should be afforded considerable importance and
weight.

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 10 of 27



Page 29

5.15 The legislative requirements of Sections 66 and 72 of the 1990 Act are Iin
addition to government policy contained in Section 16 of the NPPF. The NPPF
classes listed buildings, conservation areas and scheduled monuments as
‘designated heritage assets'. Section 16 of the NPPF advises that planning should
conserve heritage assets in a manner appropriate to their significance, so that they
can be enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of this and future
generations. Paragraph 197, in particular, states that local planning authorities
should take account of the desirability of sustaining and enhancing an asset's
significance, the positive contribution it can make to sustainable communities and
the positive contribution new development can make to local character and
distinctiveness.

5.16 The Draft Local Plan (2018) polices D4, D6, D7 and Development Control
Local Plan (2005) policies HE2, HE3, and HE10 reflect legislation and national
planning guidance that development proposals should preserve or enhance the
special character and appearance and contribution to the significance and setting of
the heritage assets and respect important views. Impact on undesignated heritage
asset

5.17 The National Planning Policy Guidance sets out that non-designated heritage
assets are buildings, monuments, sites, places, areas or landscapes identified by
plan-making bodies as having a degree of heritage significance meriting
consideration in planning decisions but which do not meet the criteria for designated
heritage assets. Local planning authorities may also identify non-designated
heritage assets as part of the decision-making process on planning applications.
Policy D7 of the Draft Local Plan (2018) set out the criteria for assessing potential
non-designated heritage assets

5.18 Paragraph 203 of the NPPF states the effect of an application on the
significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into account in
determining the application. In weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect
non-designated heritage assets, a balanced judgement will be required having
regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the significance of the heritage asset.
Policy D7 of the Draft Local Plan (2018) sets out that Development which would
remove, harm or undermine the significance of such assets, or their contribution to
the character of a place, will only be permitted where the benefits of the
development outweigh the harm having regard to the scale of the harm and
significance of the heritage asset.

5.19 The Castle Howard Ox is a purpose-built public house of the first half of the
nineteenth century, with later alterations and additions, built abutting Bootham stray
on the corner of Townend Street and Clarence Street. There is evidence to suggest

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 11 of 27



Page 30

a build date in the 1830s/40s era which accords with the laying out of Penley Grove
Street/Townend Street in that period. The heritage appraisal accompanying the
application charts the development of buildings on the site and identifies the
contribution the building makes to settings of the central historic core conservation
area and the Groves Chapel which faces the site across Clarence Street. As
identified by the appraisal the earliest built form is the southern block with its gable
entrance to Townend Street.

5.20 The building retains a number of attractive architectural features. The south
gable is of characteristic symmetrical nineteenth century arrangement, with arched
head window to the apex, and the front door is flanked by shallow arched windows
with brick quoined surrounds and projecting moulded brick drip over the lintel and
similar sills, elements of which are replicated in the brick door surround. The latter
features suggest a remodelling of the early decades of the twentieth century which
accords with photographic evidence potentially dating from 1906. Windows are
mainly replaced PVC frames, but whilst poor quality they replicate the layout of the
earlier sashes to the upper floors and the three-light mullion and transom windows
to the ground floor. To the west elevation is a three-light timber sash window set in
an impressive corbelled and dentil-corniced surround within a decorative brick
projection which probably dates to the latter decades of the nineteenth century; and
a bracketed and dentilled timber gutter support which may be to the original design.
Substantial chimney stacks and a coped verge also contribute to a characterful
historic building.

5.21 The building survives from the small-scale 2-storey terraced form of the wider
area which was developed as the city expanded in the 1840s. Although much
demolition in the Groves took place in the ‘60s/'70s for redevelopment by the Local
Authority, the historic “gateways” to the area were maintained so they still preserve
the small scale 19" century character of the main streets (Clarence St, Haxby Road,
Monkgate, Huntington Rd). The building has always had a dual aspect as indicated
on the 1852 map, facing Clarence St over former Stray land (now the former garage
forecourt)

5.22 The building has previously been identified as a non-designated heritage asset
as a consequence of its architectural and historic interest. As a public house it also
has communal value.

5.23 The proposed development would retain the original part of the building, the
revised design of the proposed extension is simple and is not considered to result in
harm to the designated heritage asset. The use of different materials whilst
complimenting the existing building give a clear understanding that the extensions
are latter additions. The proposed extension are considered to have a neutral impact
on the heritage asset. The conditions requested by the Conservation Officer are

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 12 of 27



Page 31

considered to be reasonable and necessary to ensure a development that respects
the host building and the surroundings.

Setting of Conservation Area and Listed Building

5.24 No identified harm to the conservation area as a consequence of the revised
proposals has been identified. The scheme respects the townscape and
streetscape. The development would not materially impact the setting of any listed
buildings.

Archaeoloqgy

5.25 The site is within the City Centre Area of Archaeological Importance. NPPF
paragraph 194 states that “where a site on which development is proposed includes,
or has the potential to include, heritage assets with archaeological interest, local
planning authorities should require developers to submit an appropriate desk-based
assessment and, where necessary, a field evaluation”. NPPF footnote 68 states
non-designated heritage assets of archaeological interest, which are demonstrably
of equivalent significance to scheduled monuments, should be considered subject to
the policies for designated heritage assets.

5.26 The Castle Howard Ox lies within the Central Area of Archaeological
Importance. A heritage statement confirms that the main body of the building and
the 1930s extensions are of some significance while the mid-late 20" century
alterations are not. The statement does not describe the interior of the building. It is
unknown whether the building contains any internal features worthy of recording.
The proposed works have the potential to reveal archaeological features and/or
deposits. The Archaeologist has requested the following condition: an
archaeological watching brief should take place during groundworks to record the
nature of any deposits which may survive on the site, it should include a brief
photographic record of the exterior and any features of interest within the interior of
the public house prior to conversion. This condition is considered to be necessary
and accords with paragraph 205 of the NPPF.

VISUAL AMENITY AND CHARACTER

5.27 Chapter 12 of the NPPF gives advice on design, placing great importance to
that design of the built environment. In particular, paragraph 130 of the NPPF states
that planning decisions should ensure that development, inter alia, will add to the
overall quality of the area, be visually attractive, sympathetic to local character and
history and have a high standard of amenity for existing and future users. This
advice is reflected in Draft Local Plan policies GP1 and GP9 of the 2005 Draft Local

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 13 of 27



Page 32

Plan and D1 and D2 of the 2018 Draft Local Plan and, therefore, these policies can
be given weight.

5.28 The proposed flat roofed two storey extension is set back from the Townend
Street elevation and uses different materials (brick) to the host building (render). The
proposed extension would be viewed as a latter additional and they appears
subservient to the host building. The proposed extensions are considered to be of
neutral appearance and are not considered to result in harm to the visual amenity of
the host building or the character and appearance of the streetscene when travelling
along Townend Street. Conditions for the materials, rooflights, and joinery are
considered to be necessary.

RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

5.29 The NPPF seeks a good standard of amenity for all existing and future
occupants, and that developments will function well and add to the overall quality of
the area, not just for the short term but over the lifetime of the development; are
sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting. Policy GP1 of the 2005 Development Control
Draft Local Plan and policies D1 and ENV2 of the 2018 Draft Local Plan seek to
ensure that development proposals do not unduly affect the amenity of nearby
residents in terms of noise disturbance, overlooking, overshadowing or from
overbearing structures.

5.30 The site is considered to be within a sustainable location close to York St
Johns and close to public transport for other educational establishments the site is
close to local amenities. The surrounding area contains a number of residential
streets with restricted parking controlled by the Respark scheme.

5.31 The proposal represents an intensification of use of the site combined with the
acknowledged impacts from noise and disturbance, parking pressures, and
accumulation of rubbish that can be associated with student accommaodation.
Officers consider that the amenity concerns about the development can be split into
two main areas; the first being the impact of the structures themselves and second
being the concern about the intensity of the development, the behaviour patterns of
students and the impact of this behaviour on the residential amenity of existing
residents.

5.32 The proposed two storey extension would have windows in the side/east and
rear/north elevation. The proposed ground floor windows would be screened by the
existing boundary wall. The first floor windows in the side/east elevation would face
the front garden and side elevation of No. 3 Townend Street. No 3. Townend Street
has private outside amenity space to the rear of the property and a car port between

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 14 of 27



Page 33

the side of the property and the application boundary, there are no windows at first
floor level in the side elevation. The proposed two storey extension (6.5 metres in
height) is set back from the shared boundary by 4 metres. For these reasons the
proposed development is not considered to result in a loss of privacy or overlooking
to the occupants of 3 Townend Street. The proposed extensions are not considered
to result in a loss of light or overshadowing.

5.33 No. 1 Lowther Mews stands to the rear/north of the proposed development, it
has a first floor window in the side elevation which appears to be a staircase/hallway
window. The proposed rear/north elevation windows of the two storey extension
would be 7.5 metres from the staircase window. As the staircase is not considered
to be a primary room it is not considered that the proximity of the windows would
result in a loss of privacy. Furthermore it is considered that the proposal will not
result in a harmful loss of light or impact overshadowing.

5.34 The previous use would have had some impact on the local environment and
residential amenity but reason of general activity during the day and evening. The
agent has confirmed that the proposed development would be managed, and a
condition could be imposed that requires a management plan to be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority. The plan could address issues such as:
refuse collection; change over days, security measures, maintenance, fire safety,
student liaison and community involvement etc. The introduction of 16 student
studio flats in this location is not considered to be a significant concentration that
would be potentially harmful to local residential amenity.

5.35 The access gates of the proposed development have been set into the site
which allows for refuse bins to be presented on the day of collection and not block
the pavement. In addition is it considered necessary to ensure that the refuse
storage area within the site is retained as such and complies with Policy WM1
(Sustainable Waste Management).

5.36 It is considered necessary to condition the occupancy of the building to only
students engaged in full-time or part-time further or higher education in the city as
the application does not propose affordable housing.

BIODIVERSITY

5.37 Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 places
a duty on all public authorities to have regard, in the exercise of the functions, to the
purpose of conserving biodiversity. Paragraph 174 of the NPPF requires planning
decisions to contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by, inter
alia, minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity. Draft Local Plan
policies reflect this advice in relation to trees, protected species and habitats.

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 15 of 27



Page 34

5.38 The NPPF advises that if significant harm to biodiversity from a development
cannot be avoided, adequately mitigated, or, as a last resort, compensated for, then
planning permission should be refused. A Bat, Breeding Bird and Barn Owl Survey
has been submitted to support this application. The Ecology Officer is satisfied with
the submitted ecology information and that there are no protected species in the
building. It is considered that the recommendations of the report (e.g. bat and bird
boxes) can be sought via condition.

SUSTAINABILITY

5.39 Policy CC1 ‘Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Generation and Storage’
requires that all new buildings must achieve a reasonable reduction in carbon
emissions of at least 28% unless it can be demonstrated that this is not viable. The
supporting information sets out that a reduction of 32.3% can be achieved.

5.40 Policy CC2 ‘Sustainable Design and Construction of New Development’ states
that developments which demonstrate high standards of sustainable design and
construction will be encouraged. Development proposals will be required to
demonstrate energy and carbon dioxide savings in accordance with the energy
hierarchy and water efficiency. The policy requires that change of use to residential
should achieve bream domestic refurbishment ‘very good’. The Local Plan policy
CC1 and CC2 are considered to have moderate weight given the evidence base that
supports it. The submitted BREEAM report demonstrates sets out that the proposed
extension and change of use of the existing building would achieve BREEAM
‘Excellent’ based on a BREEAM New Construction 2014 with a score 76.05% or
BREEAM Refurbishment and Fit Out 2014 with a score of 72.93% (minimum score
level for BREEAM ‘Excellent’ rating is 70%).

HIGHWAYS

5.41 The NPPF encourages development that is sustainably located and accessible.
Paragraph 110 requires that all development achieves safe and suitable access for
all users. It advises at paragraph 111 that development should only be prevented or
refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway
safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe.
Further, paragraph 112 requires development to give priority first to pedestrians and
cycle movements and create places that are safe, secure and attractive thereby
minimising the scope for conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles. Policy
T1 of the 2018 emerging Local Plan supports the approach of the NPPF in that it
seeks the safe and appropriate access to the adjacent adopted highway, giving
priority to pedestrians and cyclists.

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 16 of 27



Page 35

5.42 The site is considered to be in a sustainable location. No vehicle parking is
proposed as part of the development and the surrounding area is restricted to
residential permit parking. Covered and secure cycle parking for 18 cycles is
provided within a store on the site. The proposals are considered to be acceptable
in terms of principle of development and their impact on the surrounding highway
network. It is considered necessary to condition the submission of a travel plan. The
Highway Network Management team have requested that contribution of £10,000
towards the City of York Travel Plan support, however given the scale of the
development proposed this is not considered to be reasonable in terms of the
statutory tests in CIL Regulation 122 that requires that obligations must be:

. necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;

. directly related to the development; and

. fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

5.43 The resident’s parking zone R25 is considered to be over-subscribed. The
potential for additional parking pressures from this development have been
considered and it is recommended that the development should be removed from
the zone, meaning that future residents would not be able to apply for permits. This
Is considered to be reasonable, necessary and directly related to the development.
The costs of removing the site from the Respark Zone (approx. £3000) would form
part of the contributions being sought in the s106 agreement.

DRAINAGE

5.44 The NPPF requires that suitable drainage strategies are developed for sites, so
there is no increase in flood risk elsewhere. Local Plan Policy GP15a (Development
and Flood Risk) and Publication Draft York Local Plan (2018) Policy ENV5
Sustainable Drainage) advise discharge from new developments should not exceed
the capacity of receptors and water run-off should, in relation to existing runoff rates,
be reduced. There would be no increase in impermeable areas, it is considered that
the details of the means of the surface water drainage can be sought via condition.

SAFE ENVIRONMENTS

5.45 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires all local authorities to
exercise their functions with due regard to their likely effect on crime and disorder,
and do all they reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder". Paragraphs 92 and
130 of the NPPF require developments should create safe places and where crime
and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of life or
community cohesion and resilience. The requirements for secure cycle park, secure
external doors and opening restrictors on first floor can be achieved by condition

OPEN SPACE CONTRIBUTION
Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a

Page 17 of 27



Page 36

5.46 Public Realm has confirmed that an open space contribution is required in this
case. This can be secured through a Section 106 agreement. The contribution of
£2,416 would be used to improve the amenity open space within the nearby
Clarence Gardens, specifically towards the transformation of the disused bowling
green into a more robust area of amenity grassland. This obligation is considered to
comply with CIL Regulation 122. The Community Sports Development Manager has
requested a contribution towards sports provision. Sports provision contributions are
not normally requested for student accommodation as it is considered that the
occupants would typically use the sports facilities provided by the university or
colleges, for this reason it does not form part of the officer recommendation.

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 The proposed development is considered to be within a sustainable location. In
assessment of Heritage Assets, the scheme would preserve the character and
appearance of the conservation area, and the setting of listed buildings within it, in
addition the proposed would be of appropriate scale, form and materials and is not
considered to result in harm or loss of an undesignated heritage asset. Impacts on
archaeology are considered to be acceptable and can be mitigated by planning
condition. The proposed development is not considered to result in harm to
residential amenity or highway safety, nor would the proposal have an unacceptable
impact on ecology on or adjacent to the site.

6.2 The presumption in favour of sustainable development, as set out in NPPF
paragraph 11 therefore applies. There is evident demand for purpose built student
accommodation and the NPPF requires planning decisions give “substantial weight”
to the value of using suitable brownfield land within settlements for housing (which
includes student accommodation). The proposals are acceptable in principle when
applying NPPF and local plan policy.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION:

| That delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning and Development
Services to APPROVE the application subject to:

a. The completion of a Section 106 Agreement to secure the following planning
obligations:

Open Space

£2,416 to improve the amenity open space within the nearby Clarence
Gardens, specifically towards the transformation of the disused bowling green
Into a more robust area of amenity grassland.

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 18 of 27



Page 37

Parking
£3,000 contribution to change the Traffic Regulation Order to remove the site
from Res Park zone

b. The conditions set out below

il The Head of Planning and Development Services be given delegated authority to
finalise the terms and details of the Section 106 Agreement.

iii The Head of Planning and Development Services be given delegated authority to
determine the final detail of the planning conditions

Conditions
1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans and other submitted details:-

Drawing Number 19023-S100 Revision A 'Site Location Plan' received 17 March
2021;

Drawing Number 19023-S103 'Proposed Demolition Site Plan' received 17 March
2021;

Drawing Number 19023-P200 Revision G ‘Site Plan Proposed’ received 04.10.2021;
Drawing Number 19023-P210 Revision H 'Ground Floor Plan Proposed' received 24
September 2021,

Drawing Number 19023-P211 Revision J 'First Floor Plan Proposed' received 01
June 2021,

Drawing Number 19023-P212 Revision G 'Second Floor Plan Proposed' received 01
June 2021;

Drawing Number 19023-P212 Revision D ‘Roof Plan Proposed’ received
04.10.2021;

Drawing Number 19023-P220 Revision D 'Elevations Proposed' received 02 June
2021;

Drawing Number 19023-P221 Revision B 'Street Scene Elevation Existing &
Proposed' received 01 June 2021;

Drawing Number 19023-P222 Revision E ‘Bike Store Proposed’ received
05.10.2021;

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 19 of 27



Page 38

3 Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings
or in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external
materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the construction of the
development. The development shall be carried out using the approved materials.

A 1 metre by 1 metre sample panel of the brickwork to be used on this building shall
be erected on the site and shall illustrate the colour, coursing, texture and bonding
of brickwork and the mortar treatment to be used, and shall be approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of building works. This
panel shall be retained until a minimum of 2 square metres of wall of the approved
development has been completed in accordance with the approved sample.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the finished
appearance of these details prior to the commencement of building works in view of
their sensitive location.

4  Large scale details of the items listed below shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of
the development and the works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

- Constructional drawings for all external joinery including any alterations required to
the retained historic sash window to ground floor west elevation (preferably to be
retained as is with secondary glazing installed for acoustic and thermal
enhancement)

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with these details.

5 Notwithstanding the approved plans, product details of the roof lights to be
installed on the front roof plane of the building shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority prior to their installation. The works shall be in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To preserve the special architectural or historic interest of the building and
its setting.

6  The development hereby approved shall be used only as student housing
accommodation. No person other than a student registered with, and engaged in, a
course of full time further or higher education or a delegate registered with and
attending a part time educational course within the City of York administrative
boundary shall occupy any part of the development at any time.

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 20 of 27



Page 39

The owner, or site operator shall keep an up to date register of the name of each
person in occupation of the development together with course(s) attended. The
register shall be available for inspection by the local planning authority on demand
at all reasonable times.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in order to control the future occupancy of
the development, as otherwise the development would involve other requirements in
order to be NPPF compliant, such as the inclusion of affordable housing.

7 A programme of post-determination archaeological mitigation, specifically an
archaeological watching brief and photographic record is required on this site.

The archaeological scheme comprises 3 stages of work. Each stage shall be
completed and agreed by the Local Planning Authority before it can be approved.

A) No development shall take place until a written scheme of investigation (WSI)
for a watching brief and limited photographic record has been submitted to and
approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land that is included within
the WSI, no development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed
WSI. The WSI should conform to standards set by LPA and the Chartered Institute
for Archaeologists.

B) The site investigation and post investigation assessment shall be completed in
accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation
approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis, publication and
dissemination of results and archive deposition will be secured. This part of the
condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in
accordance with the programme set out in the WSI.

C) A copy of a report and images shall be deposited with City of York Historic
Environment Record to allow public dissemination of results within 2 months of
completion or such other period as may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority.

Reason: The site lies within an Area of Archaeological Importance and the
development may affect important archaeological deposits which must be recorded
prior to destruction. This condition is imposed in accordance with Section 16 of
NPPF.

8  No development shall take place until details of the proposed means of
surface water drainage, have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. The development shall be constructed in accordance with these approved
details.

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 21 of 27



Page 40

Reason: In the interest of satisfactory and sustainable drainage

9 A biodiversity enhancement plan/drawing shall be submitted to, and be
approved in writing by, the local planning authority prior to the commencement of
works. The content of the plan shall be include the recommendations set-out in
Chapter 10 (Recommended Ecological Enhancement) of the Bat, Breeding Bird and
Barn Owl Survey Report, MAB Environmental & Ecology Ltd. (May 2021), as
already submitted with the planning application and agreed in principle with the local
planning authority prior to determination. The development shall be constructed in
accordance with these approved details.

INFORMATIVE: To discharge this condition the applicant will need to provide a
detailed drawing showing the proposed locations and product specifications of the
proposed features/boxes.

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest of the
area, and to be in accordance with Paragraph 180 of the NPPF to encourage the
incorporation of biodiversity improvements in and around developments, especially
where this can secure measurable net gains for biodiversity.

10 Prior to development, an investigation and risk assessment (in addition to any
assessment provided with the planning application) shall be undertaken to assess
the nature and extent of any land contamination. The investigation and risk
assessment shall be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the
findings shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The report of the findings must include:

()  asurvey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination (including ground
gases where appropriate);

(i)  an assessment of the potential risks to:

0 human health,

0 property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets,
woodland and service lines and pipes,

0 adjoining land,

0 groundwaters and surface waters,

0 ecological systems,

0 archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

(i) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).

This shall be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 22 of 27



Page 41

‘Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11"

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

11 Prior to development, a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a
condition suitable for the intended use (by removing unacceptable risks to human
health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment) shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
scheme shall include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The
scheme shall ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land
after remediation.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

12  Prior to first occupation or use, the approved remediation scheme shall be
carried out in accordance with its terms and a verification report that demonstrates
the effectiveness of the remediation carried out shall be submitted to and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems.

13 Inthe event that unexpected contamination is found at any time when carrying
out the approved development, it shall be reported in writing immediately to the
Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment shall be undertaken
and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme shall be submitted to
and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Following completion of
measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report must
be shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 23 of 27



Page 42

property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

14  The hours of demolition, construction, loading or unloading on the site shall be
confined to 8:00 to 18:00 Monday to Friday, 9:00 to 13:00 Saturday and no working
on Sundays or public holidays.

Reason: To protect the amenities of adjacent residents.

15 No development shall take place until a detailed scheme of noise insulation
measures for protecting the approved residential from externally generated noise
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Upon completion of the insulation scheme works no part of the development shall be
occupied until a noise report demonstrating compliance with the approved noise
insulation scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

INFORMATIVE: The building envelope of all residential accommodation shall be
constructed so as to achieve internal noise levels in habitable rooms of no greater
than 35 dB LAeq (16 hour) during the day (07:00-23:00 hrs) and 30 dB LAeq (8
hour) and LAFMax level during the night (23:00-07:00 hours) should not exceed
45dB(A) on more than 10 occasions in any night time period in bedrooms and
should not regularly exceed 55dB(A). These noise levels shall be observed with all
windows open in the habitable rooms or if necessary windows closed and other
means of ventilation provided.

Reason: To protect the amenity of people living in the new property from externally
generated noise and in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.

16  The amenities for the occupants of the development (communal living areas,
laundry) shall be provided in accordance with the approved floor plans prior to first
occupation of the development and shall be retained for the lifetime of the
development.

Reason: In the interests of good design and the living conditions of the occupants of
the development.

17 The cycle parking storage and refuse bin storage shall be provided in
accordance with the approved plans (drawing numbers Drawing Number 19023-
P200 Revision G and Drawing Number 19023-P222 Revision E) prior to first
occupation. The facilities shall be retained for such use at all times.

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 24 of 27



Page 43

Reason: To promote sustainable transport and in the interests of good design in
accordance with sections 9 and 12 of the NPPF. To ensure there is suitable cycle
storage and refuse storage areas of the life of the development. So as to achieve a
visually cohesive appearance.

18 Perior to first occupation of the development hereby permitted a management
and occupation plan for the site shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority
for approval. The development shall operate in accordance with the approved

management and occupation plan at all times. The plan shall detail the following -

- Single occupancy only for the studio rooms as shown in the approved scheme.

- Management of the outside amenity space in the interests of avoiding noise
disturbance.

- Waste management including arrangements for placing bins for collection.

- Arrangements for management of student arrivals and departures at the
beginning and end of term. To ensure that private car travel does not have an
adverse effect on the highway network.

- Information and advice to occupants about noise and consideration to
neighbours. student liaison and community involvement.

- Property maintenance

- Security measures,

- Dealing with anti-social behaviour,

Reason: In the interests of amenity and highway safety.

19 Waste and recycling bins shall be stored in the refuse store at all times except
for collection days.

Reason: In the interests of good design and visual amenity, in accordance with
section 12 of the NPPF.

20 The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until a travel plan
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
Travel Plan should be developed and implemented in line with local and national
guidelines. The site shall thereafter be occupied in accordance with the aims,
measures and outcomes of approved Travel Plan.

Within 12 months of occupation of the extension building a first year travel survey
shall have been submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Results of yearly annual travel surveys carried out over period of 4 years from the
first survey shall then be submitted annually to the authority's travel plan officer for
approval.

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 25 of 27



Page 44

Reason: To ensure the development complies with advice contained in local and
national transportation and planning policy, and to ensure adequate provision is
made for pedestrians, cycles and other modes of transport to and from the site,
together with provision of cycle parking on site for these users. To promote the
usage of sustainable means of transport.

21  Prior to occupation the following security measures shall be employed at the
site:

- Fitting the communal entrance door with an electronic door release mechanism
connected to a videophone in each apartment. The door should also have a self-
closing mechanism with a lock which engages automatically.

- External windows on the ground floor should be fitted with opening restrictors

Reason: In accordance with sections 8, 9 and 12 of the NPPF; to promote
sustainable travel and to ensure that developments create safe and accessible
environments where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the
guality of life or community cohesion and resilience.

22  The development hereby permitted shall achieve a reduction in carbon
emissions of at least 28% compared to the target emission rate as required
under Part L of the Building Regulations 2013. Prior to commencement of
construction, details of the measures undertaken to secure compliance with this
condition shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: To fulfil the environmental objectives of the NPPF and support the
transition to a low carbon future, and in accordance with policies CC1 and CC2 of
the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018

23  The building shall be constructed to a BREEAM standard of Excellent'. A
formal Post Construction assessment by a licensed BREEAM assessor shall be
carried out and a copy of the certificate shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority within 12 months of first use (unless otherwise agreed). Should the
development fail to achieve an 'Excellent’' BREEAM rating a report shall be
submitted for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority demonstrating
what remedial measures shall be undertaken to achieve a 'Excellent’ rating. The
remedial measures shall then be undertaken within a timescale to be approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.'

Reason: To fulfil the environmental objectives of the NPPF and support the
transition to a low carbon future, and in accordance with policies CC1 and CC2 of

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 26 of 27



Page 45

the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018
24  VISQ4 Boundary details to be supplied

25 No gate shall be fitted so as to open outwards over the adjacent public
highway.

Reason: To prevent obstruction to other highway users.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome:

- Request additional information
- Request revised plans
- Use of conditions

2. INFORMATIVE:

You are advised that this proposal may have an affect on Statutory Undertakers
equipment. You must contact all the utilities to ascertain the location of the
equipment and any requirements they might have prior to works commencing.

3. LEGAL AGREEMENT

Your attention is drawn to the existence of a legal obligation under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relating to this development

Contact details:
Case Officer: Victoria Bell
Tel No: 01904 551347

Application Reference Number: 21/00537/FULM Item No: 4a
Page 27 of 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47

Castle Howard Ox, Townend Street, YO31 7QA
21/00537/FULM

Scale: 1:824

Organisation City of York Council

oooooooo
Copyright 2000. Department |Directorate of Place

Commen ts Site Location Plan
Date 01 October 2021
SLA Number




This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Area Planning Sub-Committee

21/00537/FULM
Castle Howard Ox, Townend Street

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 11 November 2021

61 abed



Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 13 October 2021



Existing Elevations

: [
| L]
=
| | ]
SOUTH ELEVATION EXISTING

=

i min
=
qo)
=

EAST ELEVATION EXISTING

SCALE BAR - 1:100

F— | ]*

L

WEST ELEVATION EXISTING

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 13 October 2021

™ |.Y1(aé’.r- |.a.n| e r.«..—: e

EvEOME

NW-ARCHITECTS

s T 011380 0 P 1138800811
www,nw-architects,co,uk

ane
Alfa Homes Ltd

T-crwnend Strest

——
Elevations
Existing

1:100 @A3

arwa

§E EE
E

ey

15023-5120

TG obed



Existing floor plans

GROUND FLOOR PLAN EXISTING

[

[T 1N

FIRST FLOOR PLAN EXISTING

SECOND FLOOR PLAN EXISTING

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 13 October 2021

2G abed



As proposed site plan

CYCLE PARKING

_

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 13 October 2021

SELF CLOSING AND LOCKING
EXTERNAL DOOR TO COMMUNAL

N

eg abed



Proposed elevations

::q

'WHITE TIMBER REPLACEMENT WINDOWS

TO FOLLOW EXISTING PATTERNS

'WHITE TIMBER REPLACEMENT WINDOWS

TO FOLLDW EXISTING PATTERNS

S0UTH ELEVATION PROPOSED

NORTH ELEVATION PROPOSED

EAST ELEVATION PROPOSED

SCALE BAR - 1:100

1] im 2m m 4m sm

NEW ROOF LIGHTS m

e

WHITE TIMBER REPLACEMENT WINDOWS

TO FOLLOW EXISTING PATTERNS

RETAINED AND REFAIRED (|

CORBELLED WINDOW ————

[=e=

NW-ARCHITECTS

0 erk P - Lo - L51 SEY

WWW. nw—ar‘chitacts.co. uk

wn
Alfa Homes Ltd

o
Townend Sireet
York

e — ——

WEST ELEVATION PROPOSED

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 13 October 2021

e
Elevations
Proposed

1100 @A3

T

a0

e

e

19023-P220

G abed



o

CF
C b

B
B
B

|:|I:|

-

i
2

.
il

SOUTH STREET SCENE ELEVATION EXISTING

i
A B
5 E

;

=]
|
1

: =

SOUTH STREET SCENE ELEVATION PROPOSED

SCALE BAR - 1:200

2m am 6m &m 10m

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 13 October 2021

m |wen| - |sen

o |sescrwrnos |w.\| wos |nam{ wx

NW-ARCHITECTS

2 ‘rrh Place - Lasch - LS 3B
ok - Te Evideee 08 - Fac s O oSN

s o :
www.nw-architects.co.uk

o
Alfa Homes Lid

PRCELT
Townend Strest
York

P
Sirest Scene Elevation
Existing & Proposed

— ) T

1:200 @A3 e
18023-P221 B

GG abed



NEW WALLS

EXISTING WALLS RETAINED

AREA OF NEW BUILD

gs

i

=
Z

9G abed

g - w |oma] - |ae

|| RER—— o [wwa| w |

—— [ P R [

—i( I I )

1 [ErEy i || e [was

] i ) E—— o |oea| w |oes

//LP.UNDRY i e |-.m--v |,—.-.n| s | n’.-.—.l
FEVITIONS

I
/rj n NW-ARCHITEETS
|
|

7 York Place - Lawch - L51 26
o arciincs ok - Lt D418 BE

- "|'_s B0 - e QN13 B8O DRI
LoUNGE | www,nw-architects,co,uk

1 ;t!:fa Homes Ltd

p—
e 1 | Townend Strest
R S A Yark

GROUND FLOOR PLAN PROPOSED Ground Floor Plan

Proposed
= o nesn
SCALE BAR - 1:100 1100 @A3 = =
o ! -
0 m m am 4m sm 10m 19023-P210 H

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 13 October 2021



SCALE BAR - 1:100

FIRST FLOOR PLAN PROPOSED

[ — ——
1] im m 3m 4m sm

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 13 October 2021

NEW WALLS

- EXISTING WALLS RETAINED

AREA OF NEW BUILD

NW-ARCHITECTS

20 Ve Pl - Lo - LEA 267
ok T 0019580080  Fae 0013 0801

e i s
www.nw-architects.co.uk

cuniT

Alfa Homes Ltd

sangcs
Townend Street
York

e
First Floor Plan
Proposed

1:100 @A3

17

f ]

=T

=]

aren

19023-P211

/S abed



KEY:

gG abed

NEW WALLS
EXISTING WALLS RETAINED
AREA OF NEW BUILD
2 2 :E O
i z 2 I pom| g
g : 5 IS = g ==
?E'! 5 i |E
NW-ARCHITECTS
e Ta 11SERE £ Faz ot et
www.nw-architects.co.uk
}’-;c f:i Homes Lid
Talwnencl Strest
Yiork
SECOND FLOOR PLAN PROPOSED gcgcd Floor Plan
Proposed
CALE BAR-1:100 1:100 @A3 — —

m m 3m am sm 10m

19023-P212 G



‘UL
|

xl'tmlli | ‘, 1

Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 13 October 2021

11

65 abed



Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 13 October 2021

CLARENCE STREET

il

.

12

09 abed



Area Planning Sub Committee Meeting - 13 October 2021

13

T9 abed



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	 
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4a Castle Howard Ox, Townend Street, York, YO31 7QA  [21_00537_FULM]
	Castle Howard Ox, Townend Street, Plan [21_00537_FULM]
	Castle Howard Ox, Townend Street, Presentation [21_00537_FULM]


